
 

 

 
 

  County Hall 
Rhadyr 

Usk 
NP15 1GA 

 
Wednesday, 26 January 2022 

 

Notice of meeting  
 

Economy and Development Select Committee 
 

Thursday, 3rd February, 2022 at 10.00 am 
 

County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

THERE WILL BE A PRE MEETING FOR MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE 30 MINUTES 
PRIOR TO THE START OF THE MEETING 

 

Item No 
 

Item  Pages 

1.   Apologies for Absence. 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest. 

 
 

3.   Public Open Forum. 
 

Select Committee Public Open Forum ~ Guidance  
 

Our Select Committee meetings are live streamed and a link to the 
live stream will be available on the meeting page of the 
Monmouthshire County Council website 
 
If you would like to share your thoughts on any proposals being 
discussed by Select Committees, you can submit your 
representation via this form 
 

 Please share your views by uploading a video or audio file 
(maximum of 4 minutes) or; 

 Please submit a written representation (via Microsoft Word, 
maximum of 500 words) 
 
You will need to register for a My Monmouthshire account in order 
to submit the representation or use your log in, if you have 
registered previously.  

 

Public Document Pack

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fdemocracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk%2FmgCalendarMonthView.aspx%3FGL%3D1%26bcr%3D1&data=04%7C01%7CRichardWilliams%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7Cdea1dfae480341d0457108d93bb35f02%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637606464744676017%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=2coXXLd7oTGoOlkC5mfbfQVSnmvKVa8zWwDLn5yNqfA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiweb.itouchvision.com%2Fportal%2Ff%3Fp%3Dcustomer%3Acategory_link%3A%3A%3A%3A%3ACUID%2CLANG%3AAF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0%2CEN%26P_LANG%3Den&data=04%7C01%7CRichardWilliams%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7Cdea1dfae480341d0457108d93bb35f02%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637606464744685972%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=zVeAfmo8771iiapn7U8Uw8v8O67hn0Vnag7A4Isrc30%3D&reserved=0
https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fiweb.itouchvision.com%2Fportal%2Ff%3Fp%3Dcustomer%3Acategory_link%3A%3A%3A%3A%3ACUID%2CLANG%3AAF982C24C2572B3224E054315401AAED8CC0A7A0%2CEN%26P_LANG%3Den&data=04%7C01%7CRichardWilliams%40monmouthshire.gov.uk%7Cdea1dfae480341d0457108d93bb35f02%7C2c4d0079c52c4bb3b3cad8eaf1b6b7d5%7C0%7C0%7C637606464744685972%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=zVeAfmo8771iiapn7U8Uw8v8O67hn0Vnag7A4Isrc30%3D&reserved=0


 

 

 
The deadline for submitting representations to the Council is 5pm 
three clear working days in advance of the meeting. 
 
If representations received exceed 30 minutes, a selection of these 
based on theme will be shared at the Select Committee meeting.  
All representations received will be made available to councillors 
prior to the meeting. 
 
If you would like to suggest future topics for scrutiny by one of our 
Select Committees, please do so by emailing 
Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk 
 

4.   Budget Scrutiny: Scrutiny of the budget proposals for 2022/23. 
 
Please use this link to access the papers for this item - available as part of 
the 19th January 2022 Cabinet agenda.   
 
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=
4674 

 

1 - 20 

5.   To confirm the minutes of the following meetings: 

 
 

5.1.   Economy and Development Select Committee dated 9th December 
2021. 

 

21 - 26 

5.2.   Special Meeting - Economy and Development Select Committee 
dated 14th December 2021 (to follow). 

 

 

6.   Economy and Development Select Committee Work Programme. 

 
27 - 28 

7.   Council and Cabinet Forward Work Plan. 

 
29 - 44 

8.   Next Meeting: Tuesday 15th March 2022 at 10.00am. 

 
 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Chief Executive  

 
 

 

mailto:Scrutiny@monmouthshire.gov.uk
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=4674
https://democracy.monmouthshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=4674


 

 

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 

 

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
County Councillor Jeremy Becker St. Mary's; Liberal Democrats 
County Councillor Alan Davies Green Lane; Independent 
County Councillor David Evans West End; Welsh Labour/Llafur Cymru 
County Councillor Mat Feakins Drybridge; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Giles Howard Llanfoist Fawr; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Paul Jordan Cantref; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Richard Roden Dixton with Osbaston; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Brian Strong Usk; Welsh Conservative Party 
County Councillor Frances Taylor Mill; Independent Group 
County Councillor Phil Murphy Caerwent; Welsh Conservative Party 

 
  

 
Public Information 

 
Access to paper copies of agendas and reports 
A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public 
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please 
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard 
copy of this agenda.  
 
Watch this meeting online 
This meeting can be viewed online either live or following the meeting by visiting 
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk or by visiting our Youtube page by searching MonmouthshireCC. 
 
Welsh Language 
The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or 
English.  We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your 
needs. 

 

http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


 

 

Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council 
 
Our purpose 
 
Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities 
 
Objectives we are working towards 
 

 Giving people the best possible start in life 

 A thriving and connected county 

 Maximise the Potential of the natural and built environment 

 Lifelong well-being 

 A future focused council 
 

Our Values 
 
Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that 

affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do 

something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t 

answer immediately we’ll try to connect you to the people who can help – building trust and 

engagement is a key foundation. 

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not 

seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and 

consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining 

why we did what we did.  

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and 

efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new 

ways of working. 

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved 

so we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers, 

but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the 

things that most positively impact our people and places. 

Kindness: We will show kindness to all those we work with putting the importance of relationships 

and the connections we have with one another at the heart of all interactions. 



 

 

Monmouthshire Scrutiny Committee Guide 

Role of the Pre-meeting 
1. Why is the Committee scrutinising this? (background, key issues) 
2. What is the Committee’s role and what outcome do Members want to achieve? 
3. Is there sufficient information to achieve this? If not, who could provide this?  
- Agree the order of questioning and which Members will lead 
- Agree questions for officers and questions for the Cabinet Member 

Questions for the Meeting 

Scrutinising Performance 
 
1. How does performance compare with previous 

years?  Is it better/worse? Why? 
 

2. How does performance compare with other 
councils/other service providers?  Is it 
better/worse? Why? 

 
3. How does performance compare with set 

targets?  Is it better/worse? Why?  
 

4. How were performance targets set?  Are they 
challenging enough/realistic? 

 
5. How do service users/the public/partners view 

the performance of the service? 
 

6. Have there been any recent audit and 
inspections? What were the findings? 

 
7. How does the service contribute to the 

achievement of corporate objectives?   

 
8. Is improvement/decline in performance linked to 

an increase/reduction in resource?  What 
capacity is there to improve?   

Scrutinising Policy 
 

1. Who does the policy affect ~ directly and 
indirectly?  Who will benefit most/least?   
 

2. What is the view of service 
users/stakeholders?  Do they believe it will 
achieve the desired outcome? 

 
3. What is the view of the community as a whole 

- the ‘taxpayer’ perspective? 
 

4. What methods were used to consult with 
stakeholders?  Did the process enable all 
those with a stake to have their say? 

 
5. What practice and options have been 

considered in developing/reviewing this policy? 
What evidence is there to inform what works? 

 
6. Does this policy align to our corporate 

objectives, as defined in our corporate plan? 
 

7. Have all relevant sustainable development, 
equalities and safeguarding implications been 
taken into consideration?  For example, what 
are the procedures that need to be in place to 
protect children? 

 
8. How much will this cost to implement and what 

funding source has been identified? 
 

9. How will performance of the policy be 
measured and the impact evaluated.  

Questions for the Committee to conclude… 

Do we have the necessary information to form conclusions/make recommendations to the executive, 
council, other partners?  If not, do we need to: 

(i) Investigate the issue in more detail? 
(ii) Obtain further information from other witnesses – Executive Member, independent expert, 

members of the local community, service users, regulatory bodies… 
(iii) Agree further actions to be undertaken within a timescale/future monitoring report… 

General Questions…. 

Empowering Communities 

 How are we involving local communities and empowering them to design and deliver services to suit 
local need? 

 Do we have regular discussions with communities about service priorities and what level of service the 
council can afford to provide in the future? 

 



 

 

Service Demands 

 How will policy and legislative change affect how the council operates? 

 Have we considered the demographics of our council and how this will impact on service delivery and 
funding in the future? 

 
Financial Planning 

 Do we have robust medium and long-term financial plans in place? 

 Are we linking budgets to plans and outcomes and reporting effectively on these? 
 
Making savings and generating income 

 Do we have the right structures in place to ensure that our efficiency, improvement and 
transformational approaches are working together to maximise savings? 

 How are we maximising income?  Have we compared other council’s policies to maximise income and 
fully considered the implications on service users?  

 Do we have a workforce plan that takes into account capacity, costs, and skills of the actual versus 
desired workforce? 

 



Budget Pressures  

Ref E&D Select Pressure 

ML1  MONLIFE - Contract inflation 49 

ML2  MONLIFE - Staffing pressures (Play Co-ordinator, Rights of Way officer, Youth Officer) 87 

ML5  Car parking Charges at Caldicot Castle 20 

RES10  ICT - service & insurance pressures 80 

 E&D Select Total 236 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2022/23 Initial Saving and Pressure Proposal Form 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



The Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for the proposal should complete forms  

Proposal 
Title 

Contract Inflation Senior Responsible 
Officer: 

Ian Saunders 

Your Ref 
No: 

ML1 Operational Lead 
Officer: 

Marie Bartlett 

Version No: 01 Directorate: MonLife 

Date: 04.11.21 Section: Across MonLife 

 

Note: The Senior Responsible Officer is expected to be a Chief Officer or Head of Service in most circumstances.  The 

operational lead officer is the lead officer responsible for bringing the proposal together and who would ultimately be held 

accountable for operational delivery. 

1. Proposal Scope and Description Please include a brief description of the proposal being explored and the core objectives.  

 

MonLife has a significant number of contracts and annual agreements for essential and front line services. This covers a 
whole range of services from gym equipment annual maintenance contracts,  Current budget s are £1.487m – we anticipate 
an average increase of 3.25% - £48,500 
 
 
 

 

2. Supporting Data and Evidence: Please confirm supporting evidence for the identified saving and/or pressure.  Or to discount 

any saving being available.   Append any further information as necessary. 
 

 

Applied general increase across most of contracts – Indications are that the average increase is likely to be 3.2f%. 
 
 

 
 

3. Budget Impact In this section please include the savings and pressures identified and the overall budget impact resulting from 

this proposal. This must cover each year implicated.   
 

Service area Current 
Budget  
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Pressure 
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Saving   
£’000 

Target year Total Budget 
Change 

Proposed 
£’000 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

MonLife  49 0 49    49 

         

         

 

4. External Funding: Has this proposal considered the opportunities for external funding? If yes, what funding avenues have 

been identified? 

Funding Identified Source Current status (i.e. confirmed, in 
application, etc) 
 

No   

   

 

 Page 2



5. Corporate Alignment: How does this proposal contribute and align with the current Corporate Plan objectives and have the 

relevant evaluations been considered and completed? Please consider any implications this proposal may have on our current 
policies. 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Does this proposal align with the MCC 
Corporate Plan? 

Y Not applicable 

Has an initial Wellbeing & Future 
Generation Assessment being 
undertaken? 

N  

Will an option appraisal be required? N  

Will this proposal require any 
amendments to MCC policy? 

N  

 

6. Additional Impacts What are the expected impacts of implementing this proposal? Please include the potential impact on other 

service areas 

Description 
 

Who is effected? Is this impact positive or negative? 

   

   

   

7. Mitigation (for budget pressures only) – What mitigation has been identified to reduce the budget pressure proposed?  What 

further steps could be taken to mitigate the pressure further and what are the consequences of this action? 

 

Renegotiation on renewal (if outside of the contract period). Sometimes difficult to identify alternative suppliers. A ll 
equipment needs to be serviced / maintained by supplier so you are limited in negotiations. 
 
 
 

8. Additional Considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal have any staffing 
implications? 

N  

Will this project have any legal implication 
for the authority? 

N  

9. Up-front Investment Requirement  

Describe any additional skills, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposal successfully. For example, 

new/additional expertise that will require additional investment etc. 

Any additional capability required Where will this come from  Any other resource/ business need 
(non-financial)  
 

None   

   

   

  

10. Consultation Describe any initial consultation that has been or needs to be undertaken in order to inform this proposal and any 

further consultation that will be required throughout proposal delivery 
 

Consultee Description Date 
(delivered/planned) 

Not applicable   

   

   

   

   

Page 3

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2020/03/Monmouthshire-Council_Corporate-Plan_Mid-Term-Refresh_3.0.pdf


11. Key Risks and Issues 

Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the outcomes expected from investing in or 

recognising the pressure identified, including any negative impacts identified in section 6 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out 

the steps that will be taken to mitigate these risks.   

Barrier or Risk Strategic/ 
Operational 

Reason why identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Level  (High, 
Medium or Low) 

Based on a score 
assessing the 
probability & impact 

Mitigating Actions  

     

     

     

12. Assumptions 

Describe any key assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

3.1% average 
increases 

Some contracts are linked to either RPI / CPI with additional % built in  

   

   

13. Measuring and monitoring performance  

How do you intend to measure the impact of this proposal?  This will include budget measures and further possible measures that 

cover process, staff and customers. Targets need to be set over the duration of the proposal where appropriate.  

Focus - 
Budget/Process/Staff/Customer 

Indicator  Target 
2022/23  

Target 
2023/24 

Target 
2024/25  

Target 
2025/26 

      

      

      

      

 

14. Additional considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal require procurement of 
goods, services or works? 

N  

Will this proposal impact on the authorities 
built assets? 

N  

Will this proposal present any collaboration 
opportunities? 

N  

Will this project benefit from digital 
intervention? 

N  

 

 

 

 

 

2022/23 Initial Saving and Pressure Proposal Form 

The Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for the proposal should complete forms  

Proposal 
Title 

Play and Active Communities Co-Ordinator  Senior Responsible 
Officer: 

Ian Saunders 

Page 4



Your Ref 
No: 

ML2a Operational Lead 
Officer: 

Nick John 

Version No: 1 Directorate: MonLife 

Date: 11.11.21 Section: Play 

 

Note: The Senior Responsible Officer is expected to be a Chief Officer or Head of Service in most circumstances.  The 

operational lead officer is the lead officer responsible for bringing the proposal together and who would ultimately be held 

accountable for operational delivery. 

15. Proposal Scope and Description Please include a brief description of the proposal being explored and the core objectives.  

 

To develop a dedicated resource to coordinate the LA statutory play provision, including the delivery of supervised provision, 
including holiday play sessions and provision for diverse needs, developing and reporting on the annual Play Action Plan and 
leading the Play Strategy group.   
 
Play is a statutory duty of local authorities set out in Section 11 of the Play Opportunities, Children and Families (Wales) 
Measure 2010. This requires local authorities to assess and secure sufficient play opportunities for children in their areas.by 
undertaking a full play sufficiency assessment every three years and to produce an annual play action plan. The 2021/22 
action plan covers the last year of the three year actions set out in the 2019 Play Sufficiency Assessment and Plan, approved 
by Cabinet in May 2019. That plan identified actions in six thematic areas: 

 Space for Play 

 Supervised Provision 

 Providing for Diverse Need 

 Young People’s Voices in Play 

 Information and Promotion 

 Partnerships 
A new Play Sufficiency Assessment and Plan will be required for the next three year period from April 2022; for submission to 
Welsh Government by June 2022.   
 
As a result of the impacts of Covid and the recognition of the adverse impact on children there are increased expectations 
around play delivery and the importance of play in children’s lives and their development.   

 

16. Supporting Data and Evidence: Please confirm supporting evidence for the identified saving and/or pressure.  Or to discount 

any saving being available.   Append any further information as necessary. 
 

 
Statutory play reporting required as follows: 

 
 
 
 

30 June 2022 (extension provided)  Play Sufficiency Assessment 2022 and Action Plan 2022-2023 

1 June 2023 Progress Report on 2022-2023 and Action Plan and 2023-2024 Action Plan 

1 June 2024 Progress Report on 2023-2024 and Action Plan and 2024-2025 Action Plan 

1 June 2025  Progress Report on 2024-2025 and Action Plan and 2025-2026 Action Plan 

1 June 2026 Progress Report on 2025-2026 and Action Plan and 2026-2027 Action Plan 

 
 

17. Budget Impact In this section please include the savings and pressures identified and the overall budget impact resulting from 

this proposal. This must cover each year implicated.   
 

Service area Current 
Budget  
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Pressure 
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Saving   
£’000 

Target year Total Budget 
Change 

Proposed 
£’000 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

MonLife  53  53    53 

         

         

 

18. External Funding: Has this proposal considered the opportunities for external funding? If yes, what funding avenues have 

been identified? 

Funding Identified Source Current status (i.e. confirmed, in 
application, etc) 
 Page 5



WG Winter of Wellbeing and similar 
annual campaigns. 

WG, WLGA Based on previous schemes and 
allocations 

   

 

 

19. Corporate Alignment: How does this proposal contribute and align with the current Corporate Plan objectives and have the 

relevant evaluations been considered and completed? Please consider any implications this proposal may have on our current 
policies. 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Does this proposal align with the MCC 
Corporate Plan? 

Y Giving the young person the best start in life 

Has an initial Wellbeing & Future 
Generation Assessment being 
undertaken? 

N  

Will an option appraisal be required? N  

Will this proposal require any 
amendments to MCC policy? 

N  

 

20. Additional Impacts What are the expected impacts of implementing this proposal? Please include the potential impact on other 

service areas 

Description 
 

Who is effected? Is this impact positive or negative? 

   

   

   

21. Mitigation (for budget pressures only) – What mitigation has been identified to reduce the budget pressure proposed?  What 

further steps could be taken to mitigate the pressure further and what are the consequences of this action? 

 
In the event of Welsh Government allocating funding towards Play and where the criteria for the funding allows an 
allocation of revenue and it meets the needs and demands of the post, without being detrimental to other elements 
of delivery of the grant, we will allocate a proportion of funding. 
 
This possibility or amount is unknown at this point, as WG will not be set their budgets and allocate any funding 
until later in the financial year or where we have seen in previous years, at very short notice.   
 
 
 

22. Additional Considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal have any staffing 
implications? 

Y An additional dedicated officer. 

Will this project have any legal implication 
for the authority? 

N  

23. Up-front Investment Requirement  

Describe any additional skills, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposal successfully. For example, 

new/additional expertise that will require additional investment etc. 

Any additional capability required Where will this come from  Any other resource/ business need 
(non-financial)  
 

Continuous Professional Development External grants  

   

   

  

24. Consultation Describe any initial consultation that has been or needs to be undertaken in order to inform this proposal and any 

further consultation that will be required throughout proposal delivery 
 

Page 6

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2020/03/Monmouthshire-Council_Corporate-Plan_Mid-Term-Refresh_3.0.pdf


Consultee Description Date 
(delivered/planned) 

Play Strategy Group For many years we have identified the need for a dedicated 
Play resource to ensure the coordination of our 
commitments and delivery meets national standards and 
expectations – as identified by this group.  

Ongoing 

   

   

   

   

25. Key Risks and Issues 

Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the outcomes expected from investing in or 

recognising the pressure identified, including any negative impacts identified in section 6 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out 

the steps that will be taken to mitigate these risks.   

Barrier or Risk Strategic/ 
Operational 

Reason why identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Level  (High, 
Medium or Low) 

Based on a score 
assessing the 
probability & impact 

Mitigating Actions  

Recruitment Operational A number of LA are 
looking at similar 
resources 

Medium Continue to deliver the level of Play we 
are currently delivering, and lean on an 
internal resource, as part of their 
current role.  

     

     

26. Assumptions 

Describe any key assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

   

   

   

27. Measuring and monitoring performance  

How do you intend to measure the impact of this proposal?  This will include budget measures and further possible measures that 

cover process, staff and customers. Targets need to be set over the duration of the proposal where appropriate.  

Focus - 
Budget/Process/Staff/Customer 

Indicator  Target 
2022/23  

Target 
2023/24 

Target 
2024/25  

Target 
2025/26 

      

      

      

      

 

28. Additional considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal require procurement of 
goods, services or works? 

N  

Will this proposal impact on the authorities 
built assets? 

N  

Will this proposal present any collaboration 
opportunities? 

Y The current Play strategy group is a multiagency group, the 
officer will build on these relationships and partnerships to 
develop more opportunities and demonstrate wider impact.  

Will this project benefit from digital 
intervention? 

Y There are many digital tool that we are not accessing 
currently across of Play provision, including feedback, 
surveys, communication, etc The officer will have the ability 
to improve this.  

 

 
Page 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2022/23 Initial Saving and Pressure Proposal Form 

The Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for the proposal should complete forms  

Proposal 
Title 

MonLife: Public Rights of Way  Senior Responsible 
Officer: 

Ian Saunders 

Your Ref 
No: 

ML2b Operational Lead 
Officer: 

Matthew Lewis 

Version No: 0.1 Directorate: MonLife 

Date: 10 Nov 2021 Section:  

 

Note: The Senior Responsible Officer is expected to be a Chief Officer or Head of Service in most circumstances.  The 

operational lead officer is the lead officer responsible for bringing the proposal together and who would ultimately be held 

accountable for operational delivery. 

29. Proposal Scope and Description Please include a brief description of the proposal being explored and the core objectives.  

 

The current operational rights of way field team consists of 1 FTE Field Officer, 1.74FTE Field Warden and 0.3 FTE Assistant 
Warden responsible for 1567km of rights of way (1326 bridges, 3848 stiles and 4004 gates (2018 figures)) and 9 countryside 
access sites.  The proposal is the creation of an additional Rights of Way Post (Grade E) in the field team to increase 
capacity to address the significant and growing numbers of outstanding rights of way issues 
 
The post would assist in undertaking direct maintenance tasks, inspections and lead on working with volunteers, local path 
care groups, friends groups, Community Councils and others to facilitate volunteer and community input to resolving 
outstanding issues.   
 
Core objective is to facilitate an increase in voluntary input, assist in delivery of grant aided and MCC expenditure and seek 
to stabilise overall performance against unresolved issues. All of these actions reflect the agreed priorities within the 
Countryside Access Improvement Plan (approved by Cabinet in February 2020). 
 

 

 

30. Supporting Data and Evidence: Please confirm supporting evidence for the identified saving and/or pressure.  Or to discount 

any saving being available.   Append any further information as necessary. 
 

 
As can be seen from the appended information reported rights of way issues are continuing to grow, this reflects strong 
growth in the use of the network and countryside sites.  This growth was already in place but has been compounded by the 
impacts of Covid and much greater use of local access network.  Strava figures and counter figures show sustained increase 
on the rights of way network and sites, for example counter figures on Castle Meadows Abergavenny have grown from 
61,000 to 98,500. This sustained increase is desirable and helps meet our policy aims of a more active population but means 
that the proportion of issues resolved has fallen and unresolved issues continue to grow (currently standing at 6016 issues 
and 713 high priority issues – these are both historic highs, overall issues have more than doubled in the last 8 years). 
 
The countryside access network in Monmouthshire (excluding the National Park) is 1657km made up of 5797 “links”   

 There are currently 952 links, 396km of the network with issues on that are recorded as unusable = 23% of the 
network 

Page 8

https://www.monlife.co.uk/outdoor/countryside-access/rights-of-way-improvement-plan/


 There are currently  2179 links,  819km of the network with issues on that are recorded as inconvenient/with 
recorded issues (so still usable but with problems) =  49%  

 There are 1279 links, 535km of the network with issues on that are recorded as inconvenient/with recorded issues 
excluding signage/waymarking) = 32% 

 Percentage of network that is either open and available fully or unknown = 28%  
 
There are 15 bridge closures in County and 326 unresolved bridge issues, of which 157 are high priority and carry high risks.  
However many of the medium or low issues are things volunteers could help with.  There are currently 634 stile issues (141 
high priority) – volunteers could help reduce these improving accessibility of the network significantly.  Similarly Gates 223 
issues (high priority 24); Surfacing 167 issues (high priority 46); Signage 1909 (high priority 9); Clearance/Trees 764 issues 
(84 high priority).   
 
Currently working with three path care groups, at least 12 further groups have expressed an interest. Working with the 
Ramblers Cymru Paths for Wellbeing project is also identifying further potential collaboration.  Support to deliver greater 
community and volunteer involvement can significantly address lower/medium priority issues freeing other staff to 
concentrate on the more complex high priority issues. 
 
See appended detailed information on rights of way issues  
 

 
 

31. Budget Impact In this section please include the savings and pressures identified and the overall budget impact resulting from 

this proposal. This must cover each year implicated.   
 

Service area Current 
Budget  
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Pressure 
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Saving   
£’000 

Target year Total Budget 
Change 

Proposed 
£’000 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

MonLife - 34 - 34    34 

         

         

 

32. External Funding: Has this proposal considered the opportunities for external funding? If yes, what funding avenues have 

been identified? 

Funding Identified Source Current status (i.e. confirmed, in 
application, etc) 
 

Whilst external funding is sought and 
achieved for improvement schemes from 
both NRW and WG it is not available to 
fund the core staff costs sought in this 
proposal, as restricted to capital 
schemes or very restricted project on 
costs – the additional post will increase 
capacity to seek and deliver externally 
funded schemes. 

  

   

 

 

33. Corporate Alignment: How does this proposal contribute and align with the current Corporate Plan objectives and have the 

relevant evaluations been considered and completed? Please consider any implications this proposal may have on our current 
policies. 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Does this proposal align with the MCC 
Corporate Plan? 

Y Strongly aligns with “the Council boosts leisure, recreation and 
wellbeing”, “the Council enables better local services through supporting 
volunteers and social action” and “the Council develops & delivers a 
sustainable plan for enhancing the local environment (Deliver Green 
Infrastructure Policy to ensure people have access to green spaces & 
Deliver more opportunities for active travel and improved connectivity) 
(See Countryside Access Improvement Plan for more detail) 

Has an initial Wellbeing & Future 
Generation Assessment being 
undertaken? 

N  

Will an option appraisal be required? N  

Will this proposal require any 
amendments to MCC policy? 

N  

 Page 9

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2020/03/Monmouthshire-Council_Corporate-Plan_Mid-Term-Refresh_3.0.pdf
https://www.monlife.co.uk/outdoor/countryside-access/rights-of-way-improvement-plan/


34. Additional Impacts What are the expected impacts of implementing this proposal? Please include the potential impact on other 

service areas 

Description 
 

Who is effected? Is this impact positive or negative? 

More support for local path care groups, 
friends groups etc. including supporting 
further groups 

Volunteers, community groups Positive 

Support to develop partnership 
arrangements with Community Councils 

Community Councils, volunteers Positive 

Joint working with highways in respect of 
county unclassified roads as part of wider 
volunteer engagement 

Highways Positive  

Supports positive engagement with land 
owners and managers 

Landowners/ Farmers Positive 

Helps address pressures for staff and 
volunteers 

Staff & Volunteers Positive 

   

35. Mitigation (for budget pressures only) – What mitigation has been identified to reduce the budget pressure proposed?  What 

further steps could be taken to mitigate the pressure further and what are the consequences of this action? 

  
This proposed post is part of an overall mitigation package to manage and address the pressures on the service, including by 
prioritising issues (by the approved prioritisation system), seeking to address asset issues before they deteriorate further, and 
encouraging and enabling volunteer and community efforts to address issues.  
 
It will assist in the delivery of the following policy statements within the approved improvement plan: 
1.0 Seek ways in which to extend cutting contracts or to manage vegetation in conjunction with Community Councils/Partners 
and volunteers 
1.7 Work with Community Councils and Volunteer Groups to target activity to improve the amenity of routes & identify 
barriers for removal enabling more 
7.2 Support Volunteering on sites and rights of way & seek opportunities for specific groups to also enhance access on 
permissive paths on NRW land. 
18.1 Support existing groups and the development of new Community Groups to improve and maintain their local rights of 
way and countryside sites. 
18.4 Work with community & town councils to deal with annual overgrowth & identify funding/priorities for improvement 
schemes 
25.0 Ensure adequate resources for the implementation of this plan by securing additional resources from internal and 
external sources that help achieve the objectives within this plan. 
25.1 Continue to develop asset management approach, particularly with bridges, to inform costs of maintaining the network 
and to make improvements 
 

36. Additional Considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal have any staffing 
implications? 

Y Additional operational rights of way post requested 

Will this project have any legal implication 
for the authority? 

N Failure to secure a safe visitor environment on the countryside access 
network will expose the authority to legal, reputational and financial risks; 
failure to address issues can result in the serving of notices under the 
Highways Act requiring the authority to undertake works. 

37. Up-front Investment Requirement  

Describe any additional skills, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposal successfully. For example, 

new/additional expertise that will require additional investment etc. 

Any additional capability required Where will this come from  Any other resource/ business need 
(non-financial)  
 

   

   

   

  

38. Consultation Describe any initial consultation that has been or needs to be undertaken in order to inform this proposal and any 

further consultation that will be required throughout proposal delivery 
 

Consultee Description Date (delivered/planned) 

Page 10



Consultations on the 
Countryside Access 
Improvement Plan 

The proposal reflects the 
extensive consultations carried 
out as part of the preparation 
and approval of the Countryside 
Access Improvement Plan 

See 
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2019/09/Appendix-
4-ROWIP-consultatio n-responses-report-2019.docx.pdf 
 

   

   

   

   

39. Key Risks and Issues 

Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the outcomes expected from investing in or 

recognising the pressure identified, including any negative impacts identified in section 6 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out 

the steps that will be taken to mitigate these risks.   

Barrier or Risk Strategic/ 
Operational 

Reason why identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Level  (High, 
Medium or Low) 

Based on a score 
assessing the 
probability & impact 

Mitigating Actions  

     

     

     

40. Assumptions 

Describe any key assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

   

   

   

41. Measuring and monitoring performance  

How do you intend to measure the impact of this proposal?  This will include budget measures and further possible measures that 

cover process, staff and customers. Targets need to be set over the duration of the proposal where appropriate.  

Focus - 
Budget/Process/Staff/Customer 

Indicator  Target 
2022/23  

Target 
2023/24 

Target 
2024/25  

Target 
2025/26 

Process Existing monitoring of resolved 
and unresolved rights of way 
issues via CAMS 

Stabilise 
growth in 
unresolved 
issues 

Stabilise 
growth in 
unresolved 
issues 

Reduce 
unresolved 
issues 

Reduce 
unresolved 
issues 

      

      

 

42. Additional considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal require procurement of 
goods, services or works? 

Y Will support procurement of rights of way materials and 
maintenance contracts 

Will this proposal impact on the authorities 
built assets? 

Y Will assists in the asset management of MCC assets (Bridges etc.) 

Will this proposal present any collaboration 
opportunities? 

Y Will support collaboration with Community Councils and 
community groups 

Will this project benefit from digital 
intervention? 

N  

 

 

Page 11

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2019/09/Appendix-4-ROWIP-consultatio%20n-responses-report-2019.docx.pdf
https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2019/09/Appendix-4-ROWIP-consultatio%20n-responses-report-2019.docx.pdf


 

  

All  Rights of Way Issues High Priority Issues* 

Time Period Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues Time Period Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

Mar-12 4892 8642 3450

Mar-13 5495 9251 2756

Mar-14 6260 10109 3849

Mar-15 6713 10969 4256

Mar-16 7269 12037 4768 Mar-16 750 1201 451

Mar-17 7869 12916 5047 Mar-17 864 1376 512

Mar-18 8483 13767 5284 Mar-18 1014 1559 545

Mar-19 8999 14519 5520 Mar-19 1170 1740 570

Mar-20 9383 15094 5711 Mar-20 1312 1908 596

Mar-21 9645 15661 6016 Mar-21 1391 2104 713

*CAMS priority range 100-250, only recoded since 2015

Bridges

Time Period up to Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

Mar-12 201 412 211

Mar-13 250 480 230

Mar-14 291 533 242

Mar-15 321 559 238

Mar-16 357 602 245

Mar-17 392 645 253

Mar-18 433 688 255

Mar-19 481 734 253

Mar-20 503 776 273

Mar-21 518 816 298

Jun-21 522 831 309

Sep-21 535 841 306

Obstacles

Time Period up to Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

Mar-12 418 1270 852

Mar-13 474 1414 940

Mar-14 557 1512 955

Mar-15 598 1584 986

Mar-16 657 1653 996

Mar-17 682 1719 1037

Mar-18 707 1782 1075

Mar-19 740 1892 1152

Mar-20 780 1956 1176

Mar-21 789 2050 1261

Jun-21 797 2092 1295

Sep-21 805 2130 1325

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

14000

16000

18000

Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

All Issues

Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Jan-16 Jan-17 Jan-18 Jan-19 Jan-20 Jan-21

All High Priority Issues

Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

M
ar

-1
2

A
u

g-
1

2

Ja
n-

13

Ju
n

-1
3

N
o

v-
1

3

A
p

r-
1

4

Se
p

-1
4

Fe
b

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

D
ec

-1
5

M
ay

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

M
ar

-1
7

A
u

g-
1

7

Ja
n-

18

Ju
n

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

A
p

r-
1

9

Se
p

-1
9

Fe
b

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

D
ec

-2
0

M
ay

-2
1

Bridges

Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

M
ar

-1
2

A
u

g-
12

Ja
n

-1
3

Ju
n

-1
3

N
o

v-
1

3

A
p

r-
1

4

Se
p

-1
4

Fe
b

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

D
ec

-1
5

M
ay

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

M
ar

-1
7

A
u

g-
1

7

Ja
n

-1
8

Ju
n

-1
8

N
o

v-
1

8

A
p

r-
19

Se
p

-1
9

Fe
b

-2
0

Ju
l-

2
0

D
ec

-2
0

M
ay

-2
1

Obstacles

Total Resolved issues Total Received issues Total Unresolved issues

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Total unresolved issues by  type March 2021

Stiles

Gates

Surface

Clearance

Bridge

Signage

Cropping

Obstacle

Other

Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

2022/23 Initial Saving and Pressure Proposal Form 

The Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for the proposal should complete forms  

Proposal 
Title 

Car parking Charges at Caldicot Castle Senior Responsible 
Officer: 

Ian Saunders 

Your Ref 
No: 

ML5 Operational Lead 
Officer: 

Tracey Thomas 

Version No: 1 Directorate: MonLife 

Date: 14.12.21 Section: Attractions 

 

Note: The Senior Responsible Officer is expected to be a Chief Officer or Head of Service in most circumstances.  The 

operational lead officer is the lead officer responsible for bringing the proposal together and who would ultimately be held 

accountable for operational delivery. 

43. Proposal Scope and Description Please include a brief description of the proposal being explored and the core objectives.  

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

4215642248423394243042522426144270542795428874297943070431604325243344434354352543617437094380043891439834407544166442564434844440

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 %

Date

Percentage of high priority resolved issues against total issues received at that time 

Enforcement

Maintenance

Other

Total

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

ge
 %

Date

Percentage of resolved issues against total issues received at that time

Enforcement

Maintenance

Other

Total

Page 13



 

The 21/22 budget included a proposal to introduce car parking charges at Caldicot Castle, the net saving within the mandate 
was 20k. 
 
The proposal has not been introduced due to the pandemic and the various restrictions imposed. During the year, further 
developments have now occurred, with CRF grant now funding a Castle development post which looks to review the future 
development and use of the castle and the country park including access to the site, a possible new entry point to the site 
and subsequently impacting on the car parking area. The castle grounds are also now subject to several active travel routes 
which will also impact on the site. 

 

44. Supporting Data and Evidence: Please confirm supporting evidence for the identified saving and/or pressure.  Or to discount 

any saving being available.   Append any further information as necessary. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

45. Budget Impact In this section please include the savings and pressures identified and the overall budget impact resulting from 

this proposal. This must cover each year implicated.   
 

Service area Current 
Budget  
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Pressure 
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Saving   
£’000 

Target year Total Budget 
Change 

Proposed 
£’000 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

MonLife  20k  20k 20k 20k 20k 80k 

         

         

 

46. External Funding: Has this proposal considered the opportunities for external funding? If yes, what funding avenues have 

been identified? 

Funding Identified Source Current status (i.e. confirmed, in 
application, etc) 
 

   

   

 

 

47. Corporate Alignment: How does this proposal contribute and align with the current Corporate Plan objectives and have the 

relevant evaluations been considered and completed? Please consider any implications this proposal may have on our current 
policies. 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Does this proposal align with the MCC 
Corporate Plan? 

N  

Has an initial Wellbeing & Future 
Generation Assessment being 
undertaken? 

N  

Will an option appraisal be required? N  

Will this proposal require any 
amendments to MCC policy? 

N  

 

Page 14

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2020/03/Monmouthshire-Council_Corporate-Plan_Mid-Term-Refresh_3.0.pdf


48. Additional Impacts What are the expected impacts of implementing this proposal? Please include the potential impact on other 

service areas 

Description 
 

Who is effected? Is this impact positive or negative? 

   

   

   

49. Mitigation (for budget pressures only) – What mitigation has been identified to reduce the budget pressure proposed?  What 

further steps could be taken to mitigate the pressure further and what are the consequences of this action? 

 
The pandemic has impacted on the income generating opportunities at the Castle with customers cancelling and postponing 
bookings.  This lack of customer confidence has extended to cancelling bookings for 2022/23 so the service is unlikely to be 
able to find alternatives to increase income by other means. 
 
 

50. Additional Considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal have any staffing 
implications? 

N  

Will this project have any legal implication 
for the authority? 

N  

51. Up-front Investment Requirement  

Describe any additional skills, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposal successfully. For example, 

new/additional expertise that will require additional investment etc. 

Any additional capability required Where will this come from  Any other resource/ business need 
(non-financial)  
 

   

   

   

  

52. Consultation Describe any initial consultation that has been or needs to be undertaken in order to inform this proposal and any 

further consultation that will be required throughout proposal delivery 
 

Consultee Description Date 
(delivered/planned) 

   

   

   

   

   

53. Key Risks and Issues 

Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the outcomes expected from investing in or 

recognising the pressure identified, including any negative impacts identified in section 6 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out 

the steps that will be taken to mitigate these risks.   

Barrier or Risk Strategic/ 
Operational 

Reason why identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Level  (High, 
Medium or Low) 

Based on a score 
assessing the 
probability & impact 

Mitigating Actions  

     

     

     

Page 15



54. Assumptions 

Describe any key assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

   

   

   

55. Measuring and monitoring performance  

How do you intend to measure the impact of this proposal?  This will include budget measures and further possible measures that 

cover process, staff and customers. Targets need to be set over the duration of the proposal where appropriate.  

Focus - 
Budget/Process/Staff/Customer 

Indicator  Target 
2022/23  

Target 
2023/24 

Target 
2024/25  

Target 
2025/26 

      

      

      

      

 

56. Additional considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal require procurement of 
goods, services or works? 

N  

Will this proposal impact on the authorities 
built assets? 

N  

Will this proposal present any collaboration 
opportunities? 

N  

Will this project benefit from digital 
intervention? 

N  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 16



2022/23 Initial Saving and Pressure Proposal Form 

The Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) for the proposal should complete forms  

Proposal 
Title 

ICT – Service & Insurance pressures Senior Responsible 
Officer: 

Peter Davies 

Your Ref 
No: 

RES 10 Operational Lead 
Officer: 

Sian Hayward 

Version No: 1 Directorate: RES 

Date: 03.12.21 Section: ICT 

 

Note: The Senior Responsible Officer is expected to be a Chief Officer or Head of Service in most circumstances.  The 

operational lead officer is the lead officer responsible for bringing the proposal together and who would ultimately be held 

accountable for operational delivery. 

57. Proposal Scope and Description Please include a brief description of the proposal being explored and the core objectives.  

 
ICT – Total Service Pressure £80k 
 

1) The new SRS budget requirements for 22-23 have been released and will be going to Finance & Governance Board 
on the 7th December.  If budget is approved by the board the authority’s contribution will have to be increased by 
£8k to bring budget in-line with the 22/23 requirement.  

2) Additional budget required to pay for cybercrime insurance cover of £71k.  A Cabinet report titled “ICT Security & 

Resilience” was presented to members on the 6th November 2021 detailing the additional investment required to 
enhance cyber security arrangements across the authority’s network.  Recommendations within the report approved 
the requirement to include additional costs into the 22-23 budget and MTFP.  

 
 
 

 

58. Supporting Data and Evidence: Please confirm supporting evidence for the identified saving and/or pressure.  Or to discount 

any saving being available.   Append any further information as necessary. 
 

 
22-23 Spend Projection 
 

 2022-23 

Service Estimated Spend Indicative Base Variance 

F022 SRS Contribution            2,269,183        2,260,816              8,367  

F006 CyberInsurance                 71,250                     -              71,250  

Revenue Total            2,340,433        2,260,816          79,617  
 
 
 
Cyber Crime Insurance 
 

Cabinet Report on 6th November 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

59. Budget Impact In this section please include the savings and pressures identified and the overall budget impact resulting from 

this proposal. This must cover each year implicated.   
 

Service area Current 
Budget  
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Pressure 
£’000 

Proposed 
Cash 
Saving   
£’000 

Target year Total 
Budget 
Change 

Proposed 
£’000 

2022/23 
£’000 

2023/24 
£’000 

2024/25 
£’000 

2025/26 
£’000 

SRS 2,269 9  9    9 

Page 17



Cyber crime 
Insurance 

 71  71    71 

Total 2,269 80  80    80 

 

60. External Funding: Has this proposal considered the opportunities for external funding? If yes, what funding avenues have 

been identified? 

Funding Identified Source Current status (i.e. confirmed, in 
application, etc) 
 

Grant opportunities identified via WG Welsh Government Confirmed 

   

 

 

61. Corporate Alignment: How does this proposal contribute and align with the current Corporate Plan objectives and have the 

relevant evaluations been considered and completed? Please consider any implications this proposal may have on our current 
policies. 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Does this proposal align with the MCC 
Corporate Plan? 

Y These were addressed as part of the report for investment in our 
digital infrastructure and its effect 

Has an initial Wellbeing & Future 
Generation Assessment being 
undertaken? 

Y Undertaken as part of the Cabinet report outlining the investment 
and funding opportunities 

Will an option appraisal be required? N  

Will this proposal require any 
amendments to MCC policy? 

N  

 

62. Additional Impacts What are the expected impacts of implementing this proposal? Please include the potential impact on other 

service areas 

Description 
 

Who is effected? Is this impact positive or negative? 

Better security and protection of the council’s 
data and information 

Staff and the communities we 
serve 

Positive 

Protection from cyber crime and fraud Our communities and workforce Positive 

Protect our schools from losing their data and 
online safety of our schoolchildren 

All school children, parents and 
teachers 

Positive 

63. Mitigation (for budget pressures only) – What mitigation has been identified to reduce the budget pressure proposed?  What 

further steps could be taken to mitigate the pressure further and what are the consequences of this action? 

 
There are no mitigating or offsetting measures to reduce the budget pressure. This pressure will protect us from 
loss of data and help us with business continuity 
 
 
 

64. Additional Considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal have any staffing 
implications? 

N  

Will this project have any legal implication 
for the authority? 

N  

65. Up-front Investment Requirement  

Describe any additional skills, resource and capability needed in order to carry out the proposal successfully. For example, 

new/additional expertise that will require additional investment etc. 

Page 18

https://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/app/uploads/2020/03/Monmouthshire-Council_Corporate-Plan_Mid-Term-Refresh_3.0.pdf


Any additional capability required Where will this come from  Any other resource/ business need 
(non-financial)  
 

N   

   

   

  

66. Consultation Describe any initial consultation that has been or needs to be undertaken in order to inform this proposal and any 

further consultation that will be required throughout proposal delivery 
 

Consultee Description Date 
(delivered/planned) 

 Consultation was undertaken as part of the Cabinet reports 
and business cases supporting this investment. 

 

   

   

   

   

67. Key Risks and Issues 

Are there any potential barriers and risks that will need to be managed in delivering the outcomes expected from investing in or 

recognising the pressure identified, including any negative impacts identified in section 6 that need to be accounted for. Also, set out 

the steps that will be taken to mitigate these risks.   

Barrier or Risk Strategic/ 
Operational 

Reason why identified 
(evidence) 

Risk Level  (High, 
Medium or Low) 

Based on a score 
assessing the 
probability & impact 

Mitigating Actions  

 Operational  L  

     

     

68. Assumptions 

Describe any key assumptions made that underpin the justification for the option. 

Assumption Reason why assumption is being made (evidence) Decision Maker 

   

   

   

69. Measuring and monitoring performance  

How do you intend to measure the impact of this proposal?  This will include budget measures and further possible measures that 

cover process, staff and customers. Targets need to be set over the duration of the proposal where appropriate.  

Focus - 
Budget/Process/Staff/Customer 

Indicator  Target 
2022/23  

Target 
2023/24 

Target 
2024/25  

Target 
2025/26 

It is inevitable that we will get a 
cyber attack at some point. We 
can only measure the performance 
via the number of attacks identified 
and deflected, but it would be very 
difficult to measure the potential 
impact of any threat that may have 
come through. 

     

      

      

      

 

70. Additional considerations: 

Question 
 

Y/N Comments/Impact 

Will this proposal require procurement of 
goods, services or works? 

 Yes but the procurement process has already been covered. 

Page 19



Will this proposal impact on the authorities 
built assets? 

 No 

Will this proposal present any collaboration 
opportunities? 

 Yes it is a collaborative process between the SRs partners 
already 

Will this project benefit from digital 
intervention? 

 It is already digital 

 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

 

Monmouthshire Select Committee Minutes 
 

 

Meeting of Economy and Development Select Committee  
County Hall, Usk - Remote Attendance  

Thursday, 9th December, 2021 at 10.00 am 

Councillors Present Officers in Attendance 

County Councillor P. Jordan (Chairman) 
 
County Councillors: A. Davies, G. Howard, 
B. Strong, F. Taylor, S. Jones and V. Smith 
 
 

Cath Fallon, Head of Economy and Enterprise 

Roger Hoggins, Head of Service - Strategic Projects 
(Fixed Term) 
Scott James, Strategic Procurement Manager 
Jane Lee, project Manager, Regeneration and 
Placemaking 
Hazel Ilett, Scrutiny Manager 
Robert McGowan, Policy and Scrutiny Officer 

  
APOLOGIES: Councillors J. Becker, D. Evans, M. Feakins and R. Roden 
 

 
 

1. Declarations of Interest  
 

To be recorded as and when appropriate. 
 

2. Public Open Forum  
 

There were no representations from members of the public present at the meeting. 
 

3. Usk and Woodside Master Plan  
 

The Head of Strategic Projects introduced the report, explaining that the draft Usk and 
Woodside Improvement Masterplan had been jointly commissioned by MCC and Usk 
Town Council (UTC) in 2018, initial work beginning in 2015 relating to traffic 
management issues. ARUP consultancy had undertaken the work with a working group 
consisting of MCC Members, officers, Usk Town Council and Llanbadoc Community 
Council the commission. He explained there has been wide consultation through 
stakeholder events to bring us to the position we are in today of bringing this to you for 
pre-decision scrutiny. The report included details of specific projects and an 
improvement and action plan, which we recommend is formally adopted by MCC, as it 
has by the other partners involved. For MCC, it is helpful to have a wider plan with 
short, medium and long term goals and it enables us to own the objectives, along with 
Usk Town Council and Llanbadoc Community Council. He advised that having a 
structured plan is welcomed by national government and it helps when bidding for future 
funding, however, officers are not underestimating the challenge of finding funding for 
the delivery for some of these ambitious projects.  
 
The chair thanked the officer for the concise outline of the report and invited members: 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 21

Agenda Item 5.1



 

 

Member Questions: 
 

 With structural funds disappearing, how quickly can we expect new funding streams to 
enable us to progress? 
 
Depends on which projects we take forward. Active travel funding could cover public 
realm and transport projects but opportunities are quite dynamic, so if we were to 
consider for example the redesign of Bridge Street or Twyn Square, funding streams 
would be active travel and transport funding. Sometimes funding cones available at 
relatively short notice, so having clear plans in place and ideas, would put is in a very 
good position.  
 

 Would the old civic amenity site be a quick win, an opportunity possibly for some 
markets and parking? Will there be additional parking around the prison when the road 
has been resurfaced.  
 
I understand bids have been received to understand it’s market value in order to 
determine its future, but it hasn’t currently been sold. In terms of the area by the 
Memorial Hall, there would hopefully be provision there but there are draining issues to 
address.  
 

 In terms of parking, can I just clarify what we would be envisaging people do? Are we 
anticipating people visiting but not by car, using public transport?  
 
The parking strategy has been considered in the past for all towns and we may need to 
revisit this as a whole in terms of charging, but also determining how the car park is 
used. It’s been an ongoing problem to balance the needs of residents and those visiting 
for leisure or work and is likely to need to be undertaken at some point to determine 
what is right for each town. 
 

 How would you differentiate between regeneration projects and public realm projects?  
 
The lines between the two are rather blurred, as are the funding streams, but there are 
other regeneration funds that we could possibly access in the future as the situation is 
constantly changing in terms of funding, as Welsh Government priorities evolve. 
Sometimes we have to use multiple funding streams for a single project which can be 
challenging.  
 

 Also how are you and partners going to manage expectations because the plan is very 
aspirational. 
 
This is a chicken and egg situation because if you haven’t got clear plans in place, you 
cannot access funding, but having plans in place does raise expectations. So we will 
look at truing to find projects that are ready and can be delivered in a timely way when 
funding becomes available. There are various funding streams within town regeneration 
and there is a also matched funding for development and strategic projects that can 
help with design work and feasibility projects.  There are projects that we can look at but 
the funding situation is fluid, so we recognise managing expectations is a challenge for 
the steering group.  

Page 22



 

 

 

 From a local perspective, what is the priority here? To increase parking or to 
pedestrianise Bridge Street? I just wondered what the priorities are and are those 
planned for?  
 
It is difficult, but at the moment, parking would tend to be the greater priority because 
pedestrianisation of Bridge Street is not currently feasible, without a wider public 
transport network. A bypass if it was ever to be agreed would be many years in the 
future. 
 

 I’d like to raise a few points: 
 
-  The lack of enforcement of car parking regulations 
- There is a need for a very good clean up of the area 
- I conducted a survey of residents a few years ago which had a 60% response 

rate in which people raised traffic issues and access considerations in Woodside 
and I sent this to the Highways Department but didn’t receive any feedback. 

- In terms of Maryport Street Car Park, there are many different accesses and 
these all reduce car parking numbers.  

- Please can you put more disabled parking adjacent to the surgery?  
 

 The question around what the priorities are for Usk is important, in terms of what we 
want Usk’s offer to be. The plan is helpful in setting our priorities and having projects 
that are ready as and when future funding becomes available.  
 
Chair’s Conclusion: 
 
We welcome this report and recognise the importance of having this plan in place to 
capitalise on future funding opportunities. The committee unanimously endorses the 
report and its recommendations.  

 
4. Strategic Procurement  

 

The officer introduced the report by explaining that this was a position update following 
a detailed report being brought to the committee earlier in the year. She reminded 
members that the Cabinet had agreed in July 2021 that the Council’s would enter into a 
mutually beneficial Delegation Agreement with Cardiff Council, for the discharge and 
provision of our strategic and operational procurement services. The committee was 
being invited to scrutinise progress including the development of an associated training 
plan for Officers. 
 
The officer explained that early changes had been realised and she thanked Cardiff’s 
Head of Procurement and our Procurement Manager for their hard work in achieving 
these so early. She presented the key points outlined in the report and drew members 
attention to the progress section, reminding the committee of the objectives and 
anticipated outcomes of this partnership working initiative.   
 
The chair invited questions from members.  
 
 

Page 23



 

 

Member Questions:   
 

 What are the early wins for Monmouthshire in this collaboration? 
 
We have been able to bring some of the experience and knowledge we’ve developed 
over the last few years in Cardiff to assist Monmouthshire in the challenges going 
forward. We have started To develop a procurement strategy but to date, have focussed 
n developing seven clear objectives to provide a clear sense of direction of travel, for 
example, decarbonisation, social value, which are very challenging. We would like to 
help MCC accelerate their work, by drawing on our experience and lessons learnt, so 
that MCC doesn’t have to go through the same learning curve. For example, in Cardiff, 
we have undertaken Carbon Modelling, so that will be to MCC’s advantage.  The ‘Toms 
Model’, which is concerned with achieving social value is something Cardiff has been at 
the forefront in introducing in Wales and we are starting to see the fruition of this work.   
The attention to detail around some of MCC’s spending for example, until now, there 
haven’t been the resources to examine this in such depth and this has given us the 
opportunity to undertake this important reflection.  
 

 The most important thing in my view is the resource to be undertake this detailed 
analysis and it’s clear that we didn’t have the ability to be able to analyse the detail.  It’s 
not all about saving money, although there will be opportunities to save money, it’s 
about realising the value of the money that is spent. I would like this committee to take a 
role in looking at these contracts in detail at a future point to see a return on investment.  
I think there is huge potential and we are moving in exactly the right direction in 
maximising the value of the public’s money.  

 

 I am particularly interested in how you would make spend more accessible through 
business and the third sector, do you have any examples? 

 
There aren’t any specific benefits we could highlight yet, but your contract procedure 
rules when redrafted for example, sought to require service areas to seek to include 
local business in opportunities. Some of the issues have been ‘how do our service 
areas know about local suppliers’ and there is some new software that is going to help 
us do that and tell us who those local contractors are.  We are looking at greater 
visibility of the approach of going to market and ensuring local businesses have the 
opportunity to bid for contracts, so that we can develop a clearer contract register so we 
can track and monitor that. We are trying to better understand areas of spend where we 
have a good use of local suppliers versus some areas where we are struggling. If we 
look at the detail, we may see there are no suppliers or that there are some who we 
could look to engage with.  We don’t want to do this work in isolation, but collaborate 
with others and with Welsh Government, so an example of a partnership piece of work 
we are currently undertaking is ‘improving the visibility of local suppliers’.  
 
The 3 dedicated procurement officers that will be recruited will help us get some real 
traction on this. It is difficult to recruit experienced procurement officers but we have 
recruited to one of the 3 posts which mean MCC will have more capacity than 
previously, but we have had to focus on clarity of objectives, analysing spend and 
developing robust governance. The new posts should help us develop our forward 
plans.  
 

Page 24



 

 

 Can you tell me how this relates to social care recruitment?  
  
This sector has some unique challenges and we are doing a specific piece of work in 
Cardiff on this at the moment to understand how spend is being managed in the 
organisation. To date, we have been concentrating on getting the foundations right.  
 

 What do you mean by supporting social value and socio-economic?  I am keen to know 
exactly what that means and how public sector spend will support communities that are 
currently socially excluded.  
 
I would comment that if you are asking whether MCC has maximised opportunities to 
achieve social value before now, the answer would be probably not, but this is exactly 
what this collaboration is about so that we are not simply complying with governance 
regulations, but learning how to proactively make progress in ensuring the ‘living wage’ 
is paid. Therefore, we are taking the time to be very clear about what our objectives are. 
I understand your view that we should have been doing this already, but it’s challenging 
and MCC wants to work with Cardiff to learn and develop from the position we are 
currently in. 
 

 Where can we see the granular information on our contracts? Is this something we can 
expect fairly soon?  
 
We are trying to tackle this on a number of fronts ~ through firstly a greater visibility of 
how money is being spent, but secondly, on how this informs our forward plan of how 
money will be spent in the future. We can only move forward from the current position 
we are in.   
 
Chairs Conclusion 
 
The chair offered thanks to MCC officers and the Head of Strategic Procurement at 
Cardiff Council for their time in attending to present the committee with a progress 
report. It was agreed that officers would be invited to return in 9 months’ time to provide 
a further progress update.  

 
5. Economy and Development Select Committee Forward Work Plan  

 

The chair drew members’ attention to the Special Meeting of the Economy and 
Development Select Committee that would be held on 14th December at 2pm to discuss 
the Replacement Local Development Plan.  

 
6. Council and Cabinet Work Planner  

 

The committee noted the report but did not highlight anything needed particular scrutiny 
that hadn’t been taken into account in developing the Select Committee’s work 
programme. 

 
7. To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting  

 
 
 

 

Page 25



 

 

8. Next Meeting  
 

3rd February 2022 at 10.00am. 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11.18 am.  
 

 

Page 26



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2021 
 
 

Economy Select Committee 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

9th December 2021 Usk and Woodside Master 
Plan 

To conduct pre-decision scrutiny of the Usk and 
Woodside Master Plan. This is joint plan between Usk 
Town Council and Monmouthshire County Council which 
will deliver an action plan for the area. 

Jane Lee 
Roger Hoggins 

Pre-decision Scrutiny 

Strategic Procurement To scrutinise a position update report on Strategic 
procurement.  

Cath Fallon 
 

Performance Monitoring 

14th December 2021 

 

Special Meeting 

Replacement Local 
Development Plan 

To consider the implications for Monmouthshire’s 
communities of the Welsh Government’s consultation 
response to the Replacement Local Development Plan 
(RLDP) Preferred Strategy, in particular the Welsh 
Government’s maximum dwelling requirement for the 
RLDP.  Members will consider the modelling that will 
inform debate and will hear from the public and key 
stakeholders. 

Mark Hand 
Rachel Lewis 
Craig O’Connor 

Policy Development 

3rd February 2022 Scrutiny of the Budget 
Proposals for 2022-2023 

To scrutinise the draft budget proposals. Peter Davies 
Phil Murphy 

Budget Scrutiny 

To be confirmed Local Development Plan  
 
WORKSHOP   

Landscape and natural environment – including:  

 GW /GB 

 GI  
 

 Scrutiny Workshop ~ Policy 
Development 

To be confirmed Local Development Plan  
 
WORKSHOP   

Affordable housing 2 – with viability evidence Mark Hand 
Rachel Lewis 
Craig O’Connor 

Scrutiny Workshop ~ Policy 
Development 

To be confirmed Local Development Plan  
 
WORKSHOP   

Once Candidate Sites have been assessed:  
Site allocations (residential, employment, tourism, 
renewable energy) 

Mark Hand 
Rachel Lewis 
Craig O’Connor 

Scrutiny Workshop ~ Policy 
Development 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2021 
 
 

TBC 2022 Local Development Plan  
 
WORKSHOP   

Deposit Plan Member workshop Mark Hand 
Rachel Lewis 
Craig O’Connor 

Scrutiny Workshop ~ Policy 
Development 

15th March 2022 

 

Budget Monitoring Report To scrutinise the budget report for month 9. Jonathon Davies Budget Monitoring 

28th April 2022 

 

CANCELLED    

June 2022 TBC Impact of loss of EU Funding 
Streams 

To be confirmed Cath Fallon  

 

Future Meeting Items: Agreed Scrutiny Focus 

 Affordable housing, transport and the LDP 

 Tourism and enterprise  

 Business and Enterprise Strategy 

 Town plans, strategic plans 
 
Items to diarise: 
 

 Supplementary Planning Guidance on S106 Agreements 

 Car Parking Review 

 MonLife  

 Post EU funding ~ shared prosperity funding 
 

 

 

P
age 28



Committee / 

Decision Maker

Meeting date / 

Decision due
Subject Purpose Author

Date item added to 

the planner

Date item originally 

scheduled for 

decision

Council 04/11//2021 Final Statement of Accounts Peter Davies 07/05/21

Council 01/12/2022

RLDP Deposit Plan for submission to WG for 

examination

Approval of Deposit Plan post-consultation for 

submission to WG for independent examination

Mark Hand / Craig O'Connor 30/07/21

Council 01/10/23

RLDP for Adoption

Mark Hand 23/01/20

Council 01/02/23

LDP submission for examination 

Mark Hand 23/01/20

Council 01/07/22

RLDP Deposit Plan endorsement for consultation Endorsement of Deposit Plan

Mark Hand 23/01/20

ICMD 15/06/22
Non-moving Traffic Regulation Orders (Amendment 

No. 4) 
Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

Council 07/06/22
RLDP Preferred Strategy endorsement post 

consultation 

Endorsement of preferred strategy to inform deposit 

plan
Mark Hand / Craig O'Connor 20/05/20

Cabinet 06/04/22

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 9 held 

on 10th March 2022

Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

Monmouthshire County Council is required to publish a forward plan of all key decisions to be taken. Council and Cabinet items will only be considered for decision if they have been included on the planner no later than the month 

preceding the meeting, unless the item is considered urgent.  

Cabinet, Council and Individual Cabinet Member Decisions (ICMD) Forward Plan

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



Council 10/03/22

2022/23 Treasury Policy

Jon Davies 07/05/21

Council 10/03/22 Capital Strategy Jon Davies 20/05/21

Council 10/03/22

2022/23 Final Budget sign off including Council Tax 

Resolution

Peter Davies 07/05/21

ICMD 09/03/22

20mph Speed Limits Traffic Regulation Order 

(Additional sites) (Amendment No. 2) 

DEFERRED TO 9/3/22

Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

ICMD 09/03/22 20mph Speed Limits Monmouth Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 21/01/22

ICMD 09/03/22 Non-Moving Orders (outside 20s tiles) Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 21/01/22

Council 03/03/22

Population Needs Assessment To seek approval of assessment of the care and 

support needs of the population carried out jointly by 

the Local Authority and Local Health Board as required 

by The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 

2014.

Sharran Lloyd / Phil Diamond 07/12/21

Cabinet 02/03/22

2021/2 Revenue and Capital Monitoring report - 

month 9

Jon Davies 27/04/21

Cabinet 02/03/22

2022/23 Final Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals

Peter Davies 27/04/21

Cabinet 02/03/22

2022/23 WCF/Treasury Fund Investments

Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

P
age 30



Cabinet 02/03/22

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 8 held 

on 27th January 2022

Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

Cabinet 02/03/22

Changes to the School Funding Formula for pupils 

with Additional Learning Needs

following a recommendation of the School Budget 

Forum a review has taken place with schools of the 

formula for pupils with additional learning needs.  This 

will be consulted on during January and February 2022 

with the final recommendations being presented to 

Cabinet in March with a recommendation to approve 

Nikki Wellington 16/12/21

Cabinet 02/03/22

Childcare Sufficiency Assessment 

Susan Hall 07/12/21

Cabinet 02/03/22
Review of Monmouthshire’s Destination Management 

Plan 2017-2020 

Purpose: to approve the revised Destination 

Development Plan 
Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

Cabinet 02/03/22
Castle Dell Playpark, Chepstow.

Mike Moran 25/01/22

Cabinet 02/03/22

	Abergavenny Velo Park CM

Mike Moran 14/10/20

ICMD 23/02/22
Non-moving Traffic Regulation Orders (Amendment 

No. 3) 
Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

Cabinet 16/02/22

Cabinet approval of the evidence based three year 

highway maintenance forward programme

Mark Hand 07/10/21

ICMD 09/02/22
20mph Speed Limit Traffic Regulation Order (Pilot) 

 (Amendment No. 1)
Deferred to 9/2/22 Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

ICMD 09/02/21 Interim Pavement Café Policy Deferred from 26/1/21/moved to 9/2 Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 26/01/21

P
age 31



ICMD 09/02/22
20mph Speed Limits Traffic Regulation Order 

(Additional sites) (Amendment No. 2) 

DEFERRED TO 9/3/22

Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

Council 27/01/22

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Ruth Donovan 07/05/21

Council 27/01/22

Corporate Parenting Strategy

Jane Rodgers

Council 27/01/22

CJCs

Frances O'Brien 16/12/21

ICMD 26/01/22 Interim Pavement Café Policy Deferred from 26/1/21/moved to 9/2 Paul Keeble/Pratt 26/01/21

ICMD 26/01/22
20mph Speed Limit Traffic Regulation Order (Pilot) 

 (Amendment No. 1)
Deferred to 9/2/22 Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

ICMD` 26/01/22
2022/23 Community Council and Police Precepts - 

final
Deferred from 12 Jan 2022 Jon Davies 07/05/21

 Cabinet 19/01/22

Draft Budget Proposals and Medium Term Financial 

Strategy

Jon Davies

Cabinet 19/01/22

UK COMMUNITY RENEWAL FUND 

OUTCOME/UPDATE ON THE RURAL 

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME/FUTURE FUNDING 

OPPORTUNITIES
Cath Fallon 15/12/21

Cabinet 19/01/22

WESP

Sharon Randall Smith 23/12/21

P
age 32



Cabinet 19/01/22

Welsh Government Business Development Grant

Hannah Jones 23/11/21

Cabinet 19/01/22

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 7 held 

on 16th December 2021

Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

Cabinet 19/01/22

Consultation on the proposals to establish an all-

through school, Abergavenny.

Cabinet to receive objection report and decide whether 

to proceed with the proposal.

Debbie Graves 26/05/21

ICMD 12/01/22 Interim Pavement café Policy

Deferred to 26th Jan

Paul Keeble/Cllr J Pratt 17/12/21

ICMD 12/01/22

Living Levels Partnership to consider continued involvement in the partnership as 

it enters a transition stage

Matthew Lewis Lisa Dymock 13/11/21

IMCD 12/01/22

2022/23 Community Council and Police Precepts - 

final

DEFERRED TO 26 JAN 2022

Jon Davies 07/05/21

ICMD 22/12/21

Play and Recreation S106 Capital Funded Schemes 

2021/22

Mike Moran

ICMD 22/12/21

MINOR AMENDMENT TO STREET NAMING AND 

NUMBERING POLICY REGARDING 

REPLACEMENT OR ADDITION STREETNAME 

SIGNS FOR EXISTING STREETS 
Mark Hand/Jane Pratt 03/12/21

ICMD 22/12/21

Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011

Alan Burkitt/Lisa Dymock 22/10/21

IMCD 08/12/21

2022/23 Community Council and Police Precepts 

draft

Jon Davies 07/05/21

P
age 33



IMCD 08/12/21

Council Tax Base and associated matters

Ruth Donovan 07/05/21

Cabinet 01/12/21

Cabinet approval of the methodology for prioritising 

highway resurfacing and maintenance projects Mark Hand 07/10/21

Cabinet 01/12/21

Regional approach to employability

Hannah Jones 04/11/21

Cabinet 01/12/21

CORONAVIRUS STRATEGY: PROGRESS AND 

NEXT STEPS

Matt Gatehouse

Cabinet 01/12/21
Welsh Church Fund Working group - meeting 6 held 

on 4th November 2021
Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

Didn't arrive

Cabinet 01/12/21
2021/22 Revenue and Capital Monitoring report - 

month 6
Peter Davies/Jon Davies 27/04/21

ICMD 24/11/21 SPG S106 Supplementary Planning Guidance  
Adoption of SPG clarifying how S106 contributions are 

calculated following consultation
Mark Hand / Phillip Thomas 26/04/21

ICMD 10/11/21 AWPOG Capital Funding for Fixed Play Provision Mike Moran

Council 04/11/21 Climate and Decarbonisation Strategy

To endorse an updated climate strategy and action 

plan which will introduce new programmes of activity to 

achieve the council’s clear policy commitment to 

reduce carbon emissions.

Matthew Gatehouse / Hazel 

Clatworthy
19/05/21

Council 04/11/21 Diversity and Democracy Declaration John Pearson 12/02/21

P
age 34



Council 04/11/21 Council Diary John Pearson 29/09/21

Council 04/11/21 Safeguarding Evaluative Report Jane Rodgers 20/07/21

Council 04/11/21 ISA260 - MCC Accounts Jon Davies

Council 04/11/21
Statement of Gambling Policy and Proposals for 

Casinos.  
Linda O'Gorman 21/09/21

Cabinet 03/11/21 Ombudsman’s annual letter Annette Evans 13/10/21

Cabinet 03/11/21

ICT Security and Resilience

Sian Hayward 07/10/21

Cabinet 03/11/21

Active Travel Network Maps

Paul Sullivan 13/11/20

ICMD 27/10/21 Museum object disposal Rachael Rogers 09/06/21

ICMD 27/10/21
LDP Annual Monitoring Report and Development 

Management Annual Performance Report 
Endorsements of reports for submission to WG Mark Hand / Craig O'Connor 26/04/21

Cabinet 06/10/21
Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 5 held 

on 23rd September 2021
Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

P
age 35



Cabinet 06/10/21
Consultation on the proposals to establish an all-

through school, Abergavenny.

Cabinet to receive the consultation report and consider 

recommendations on proposed way forward / whether 

to publish statutory notices.

Debbie Graves 26/05/21

Council 23/09/21

Director of Social Services Annual Report

Julie Boothroyd

Council 23/09/21 Borough Theatre Funding Proposal cath Fallon

Council 23/09/21 Corporate Plan Annual Report Emma Davies 17/08/21

Council 23/09/21

Audit Committee Annual Report

Phillip White 29/06/21

ICMD 22/09/21

Leave Averaging & Holiday Pay Deferred to 13th October

Katherine Cameron

Cabinet 15/09/21

Placemaking Charter

Council signs up to the Placemaking Charter Mark Hand / Craig O'Connor 28/04/21

Cabinet 15/09/21 Borough Theatre Funding Proposal

Needs to go 15
th
 Sept as won’t be ready for 1

st
 Sept – 

Cabinet want to endorse this before it goes to Council 

for funding to be secured on 23
rd

 Sept

Cath Fallon

Cabinet 15/09/21 Code of Corporate Governance Andrew Wathan 20//07/2021

Cabinet 15/09/21
Welsh Church Fund Working group - meeting 4 held 

on 22nd July 2021
Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

P
age 36



Cabinet 15/09/21

Regeneration projects and Placemaking grant 

submission To endorse the indicative Placemaking Grant 

submission for £791,429 made under the Welsh 

Government Transforming Towns funding

Mark Hand 29/07/21

Cabinet 15/09/21 Afghan National Relocation Scheme

To re-state Cabinet’s commitment to continued 

participation in the Home Office Afghan National 

Relocation scheme in line with the desire for 

Monmouthshire to be a county of sanctuary for those 

fleeing persecution.

Lisa Dymock/Matt Gatehouse8/16/2021 - amended 20/8/21

ICMD 08/09/21 Abergavenny Town Floodlights Mike Moran 26/06/21 23/06/21

ICMD 18/08/21

Consultation on the review of school places in 

Caldicot town

Matthew Jones 21/07/21

ICMD 18/08/21 SPG S106 Supplementary Planning Guidance  Matk Hand / Phillip Thomas 01/05/21

ICMD 18/08/21
Procurement of PaybyPhone as an additional 

payment service for our car parks (Jane Pratt)
Agree to procure PaybyPhone Mark Hand 29/07/21

ICMD 04/08/21
Planning Policy discretionary service charges (Bob 

Greenland)
Agree Candidate Site assessment charges Rachel Lewis 29/07/21

Cabinet 28/07/21

Securing resources for ICT resilience

To provide appropriate investment for security 

resilience in ICT systems
Sian Hayward 30/06/21

Cabinet 28/07/21

Regional Collaboration: Gwent Public Service Board

Richard Jones 14/07/21

Cabinet 28/07/21

2021/22 Revenue and Capital Monitoring report

Peter Davies/Jon Davies 27/04/21

P
age 37



Council 22/07/21

investments in Leisure Centres

Marie Bartlett / Ian Saunders

ICMD 14/07/21 Museum object Disposal Rachael Rogers/Lisa Dymock 19/05/21

Cabinet 07/07/21

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 3 held 

on 24th June 2021

Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

Cabinet 07/07/21

Capital Slippage

Jon Davies 11/06/22

Cabinet 07/07/21

•	Mutual Delegation of Strategic Procurement Services

Cath Fallon

Council 24/06/21 Chief Officer's Report Will Mclean 19/05/21

Council 24/06/21 Shire Hall / Monmouth Museum Matthew lewis 24/05/21

Council 24/06/21

LDP Preferred Strategy endorsement for consultation 

Mark Hand 21/09/20

Cabinet 09/06/21

2020/21 Revenue and Capital Monitoring outturn The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2020/21 

financial year
Peter Davies/Jon Davies 27/04/21

Cabinet 09/06/21

Welsh Church Fund Working Group - meeting 1 held 

on 15th April 2021 and meeting 2 held on 13th May 

2021 Dave Jarrett 27/04/21

P
age 38



Cabinet 09/06/21

Digital and Data  To seek approval for the creation of a new Digital 

Design and Innovation Team, to strengthen our 

information governance arrangements and to broaden 

the remit of the existing performance team to include 

data analytics’.

Emma Jackson 13/05/21

Cabinet 09/06/21

Shire Hall / Monmouth Museum – to consider the 

outcome of the feasibility study

Matthew Lewis/Ian Saunders 05/02/21

Council 13/05/21

Outside Bodies

John Pearson

Council 13/05/21

Appointment to Committees

John Pearson

Council 13/05/21

Political Balance

Matt Phillips

Council 13/05/21

Freedom of the Borough

Joe Skidmore 22/04/21

Council 13/05/21

Climate and Decarbonisation Strategy and Action 

Plan 

Hazel Clatworthy 14/04/21

ICMD 12/05/21

A Nation of Sancturary - Asylum Dispersal Scheme - 

Moved to Cabinet

To provide Council with an progress update on the 

Climate and Decarbonisation Strategy and Action Plan 

which was developed following the passing of a motion 

to declare a climate emergency.
Matt Gatehouse 19/04/21

ICMD 12/05/21

Play Action Plan Cabinet Member Richard John Report originally on Cabinet Agenda

Matthew Lewis/Mike Moran/Ian Saunders 16/03/21

Cabinet 14/04/21

Leisure Centre Investments

Marie Bartlett 22/03/21

P
age 39



Cabinet 14/04/21

Statutory Consultation to establish 4-19 school in 

Abergavenny

Cath Saunders 03/03/21

Cabinet 14/04/21

Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting

The purpose of this report is to make recommendations 

to Cabinet on the Schedule of Applications 2020/21 - 

meeting 6 held on 11th March 2021

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Cabinet 14/04/21

Whole Authority Strategic Risk Assessment

Richard Jones 02/03/21

ICMD 07/04/21

Strategic Procurement

Cath Fallon/P Murphy 09/03/21

ICMD 24/03/21 SPG S106 Supplementary Planning Guidance  

To Clarify how S106 contributions are 

calculated/deferred from 13/1/21 and 24/02/21 

deferred UFN

Phil Thomas/Mark Hand 01/05/19

Council 11/03/21

Appointments to outside bodies

To appoint a representative to the Wye Navigation 

Advisory Committee
Matt Gatehouse 08/02/21

Council 11/03/21

Council Tax Resolution Report

Ruth Donovan 02/04/20

Council 11/03/21

Treasury Strategy report

Jon Davies 15/12/20

Council 11/03/21 Constitution Review Matt Phillips 14/08/19

Council 11/03/21 The Annual Pay Policy Sally Thomas 11/02/21

P
age 40



ICMD 10/03/21 disposal of land for consideration Awaiting notification re inclusion DEFERRED UFN by Cllr Murphy/ Ben Thorpe 09/02/21

ICMD 10/03/21 Wye Valley AONB Management Plan 2021-26 Matthew Lewis/Richard John 10/02/21

Cabinet 03/03/21

•	EAS Business Plan 

Sharon Randall Smith 21/09/20

Cabinet 03/03/21

Final revenue and capital budget proposals 

Peter Davies 21/09/20

Cabinet 03/03/21

Social Justice Strategy Update 

Cath Fallon 17/09/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting

The purpose of this report is to make recommendations 

to Cabinet on the Schedule of Applications 2020/21 - 

meeting 5 held on 14th January 2021

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20 30/11/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Apprenticeship Pay Rates 

Gareth James 08/01/21

Cabinet 03/02/21

Outdoor Adventure Provision at Gilwern

Marie Bartlett 30/11/20

Cabinet 03/02/21 Proposed Disposal of MCC Cottages Nicola Howells 15/12/20

ICMD 27/01/21

Approval on Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 - 

The Local Authorities (Precepts) (Wales) Regulations 

1995

Deferred from 13/1 to 27/1 Jon Davies

P
age 41



Cabinet 20/01/21
•	Draft revenue and capital budget proposals for 

consultation 
Peter Davies 21/09/20

Cabinet 20/01/21

Chippenham Mead Play Area, Monmouth

Mike Moran 15/12/20

Cabinet 20/01/21 Play Area Assessments and Future Play Area Policy 
to advise members of play area assessments carried 

out last year and suggest a rationalisation of provision
Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

Cabinet 20/01/21

BUS EMERGENCY SCHEME (BES) – REQUEST 

TO ALL COUNCILS TO SIGN UP TO THE BES2 

SCHEME Roger Hoggins 24/12/20

Council 14/01/21 Council Diary 2021/22 Nicola Perry

Council 14/01/21

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Ruth Donovan 07/04/20

Council 14/01/21

Annual Safeguarding Report

Jane Rodgers 21/09/20

ICMD 13/01/21

Minerals Regional Technical Statement Second 

Revision (RTS2

Rachel Lewis 17/12/20

ICMD 13/01/21 Museum Service Collection Review 

To propose the deaccessioning of and disposal actions 

for the proposed items in line with Section 4 of the 

Museums Association Disposal Toolkit 

Matthew Lewis/Rachael Rogers 22/09/20

ICMD 13/01/21

Minimum Energy Efficiency Standards in the Private 

Rented Sector

Gareth Walters 15/12/21

P
age 42



ICMD 13/01/21

Staffing Changes: Business Support To seek approval for the voluntary redundancy of the Chief 

Executive’s Personal Assistant, reducing the cost of 

administrative support arrangements for the senior 

management team and contribute to budget savings during 

the 2021-22 financial year./Paul Jordan

Matt Gatehouse 15/12/21

Cabinet 06/01/21

Budget Monitoring Report - month 7 (period 2)
The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2020/21 

financial year.

Peter Davies/Jon Davies 02/04/20

Cabinet 06/01/21

RIPA Policy

Matt Phillips 21/10/20

Cabinet 06/01/21 Gypsy Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2020 Mark Hand 23/06/20

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Budget Scrutiny: Scrutiny of the budget proposals for 2022/23.
	5.1 Economy and Development Select Committee dated 9th December 2021.
	Minutes

	6 Economy and Development Select Committee Work Programme.
	7 Council and Cabinet Forward Work Plan.

